
WOODBURY COUNTY 
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Monday, May 1, 2023 at 6:00 PM 
The Woodbury County Board of Adjustment will hold a public meeting on Monday, May 1, 2023 at 6:00 PM in the 1st Floor 
Board of Supervisor’s Meeting Room, Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, IA.  Please use the 7th

St. entrance.  Public access to the conversation of the meeting will also be made available during the meeting by telephone. 
Persons wanting to participate in the public meeting may attend in person or call: (712) 454-1133 and enter the Conference 
ID: 285 965 578# during the meeting to listen or comment.  It is recommended to attend in person as there is the possibility 
for technical difficulties with phone and computer systems. 

AGENDA

1 CALL TO ORDER 

2 ROLL CALL 

3 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

4 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: April 3, 2023 

5 ITEM(S) OF BUSINESS 

» PUBLIC HEARING: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION: VENDOR SALES OF ALCOHOL DURING 
RAGBRAI ON PARCEL #894407100006, 2590 110th St., Moville, IA 51039 
Backpocket Brewing (Applicant) and property owners Chad and Tara Schmitt have filed for a Conditional Use Permit application to sell 
alcohol during RAGBRAI’s visit through Woodbury County on July 23, 2023.  The proposed sales site is on Parcel #894407100006 in the 
NW ¼ of Section 7, T89N R44W (Arlington Township).  The property is addressed at 2590 110th St., Moville, IA 51039.  The parcel is located 
in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.  The Woodbury County Board of Supervisors approved Ordinance #69, effective 
November 16, 2022, authorizing this request as a conditional use in the AP District.   

» PUBLIC HEARING: VARIANCE REQUEST TO BUILD ACCESSORY POLE BARN (SHED) PRIOR TO 
BUILDING A PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE (SINGLE-FAMILY DWELLING), PARCEL #884724300011 
Jerod & Kayla Eickholt have filed a variance application with the request to build an approximately 40’ x 60’ accessory pole barn (shed) prior 
to building a principal structure (single-family dwelling).  Section 4.12.2 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance requires that “no 
accessory building shall be constructed upon a lot until the construction of the principal building has commenced…” (p. 45).  The property 
owners have filed this variance to request relief from the requirement that the principal structure (house) must be built before the accessory 
structure (shed) due to a delay with the contractor.  The property is located on Parcel #884724300011 on Lot 1 of the Davis Estates 
Subdivision in Section 24, T88N R47W (Woodbury Township).  The parcel is located in the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District and is 
not located in the floodplain.   

» PUBLIC HEARING: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION: LANDSCAPING SERVICES, NURSERY 
BUSINESS, AND OTHER RELATED USES, ETC. ON PARCEL #894607100006 
Marilyn Niemeyer, as Trustee of the Edwin O. Niemeyer Revocable Trust (Owner) and Sid Mosher (Applicant) has filed for a conditional use 
permit application to use the property for landscaping and a nursery on a portion of the property identified as Parcel #894607100006 in the 
SW ¼ of the NW ¼ of Section 7, T89N R46W (Concord Township).  The parcel is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning 
District.  The property is addressed at 1130 Barker Avenue, Sioux City, IA 51108.  Although horticultural production (including nurseries & 
greenhouses) are principally allowed uses in the AP Zoning District, a conditional use permit is required for similar landscaping uses such as 
tree services, sand and gravel storage, and feed and seed sales, fertilizer storage/distribution/application, and other related uses to a 
landscaping business.  This conditional use permit application is being considered concurrently with a one-lot minor subdivision application 
to establish a 4.5-acre lot.   

1



» PUBLIC HEARING: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION: TEMPORARY BORROW PITS ON TWO 
PROPOSED BORROW AREAS: BORROW AREA #1: Parcel(s) 884704200001 & 884704200003; BORROW 
AREA #2: Parcel(s): 884702100006 
JB Holland Construction, Inc. (Applicant) and property owners Eric Hennings and Donald Hennings of the Hennings Joint Trust have filed for 
a Conditional Use Permit application to establish temporary borrow sites to remove earthen materials to be used in Phase 1 and 2 of the 
east bound Highway 20 project (IDOT Project #17-97-020-010).  The proposed temporary borrow areas are located on Parcel 
#884704200001, Parcel #884704200003 and Parcel #884702100006.  Both parcels are located on the south side of Highway 20.  Each 
parcel is currently used as farm ground.  The proposed cut area on Parcel #884704200001 and Parcel #884704200003 is 8-10 acres.  The 
work area is 10 acres and the total excavation for export is 100,000-150,000 yrds3.  The proposed cut area on Parcel #884702100006 is 8-
10 acres.  The work area is 10 acres, and the total excavation for export is 100,000-150,000 yrds3.  The parcels are located in the 
Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and a portion of Parcel #884702100006 is located in the floodplain.  However, this area will not 
be a part of the borrow site.   

» INFORMATION / DISCUSSION: WOODBURY COUNTY SOLAR ENERGY REQUIREMENTS REVIEW FOR 
POSSIBLE CHANGES TO ZONING ORDINANCE 

» INFORMATION / DISCUSSION: SUMMARY OF PROPOSED REVISIONS TO WOODBURY COUNTY 
ORDINANCE #56: AMENDMENTS TO MODIFY SECTION 6.1.A: WIND TURBINES SET BACK REQUIREMENTS 
TO INCREASE CERTAIN SETBACK REQUIREMENTS TO THE ORDINANCE REGULATING COMMERCIAL 
WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS IN UNINCORPORATED WOODBURY COUNTY. 

» INFORMATION / DISCUSSION: WOODBURY COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 2040 UPDATE

» INFORMATION / DISCUSSION: FEMA INITIATES 90-DAY APPEAL OF THE REVISED FLOOD RATE MAP 
AND FLOOD INSURANCE STUDY FOR WOODBURY COUNTY AND INCORPORATED AREAS 

6 PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

7 BOARD MEMBER COMMENT OR INQUIRY 

8 STAFF UPDATE 

9 ADJOURN 

2



1 

Minutes - Woodbury County Board of Adjustment – April 3, 2023 

The Board of Adjustment meeting convened on the 3rd of April 2023 at 6:00 PM in the first-floor board room of the Woodbury 
County Courthouse.  The meeting was also made available for public access via teleconference.   

BA Members Present : Daniel Hair, Tom Thiesen, Doyle Turner 
County Staff Present:  Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton 
Public Present: Gayle Palmquist, Deb Main 

Call to Order 
Chair Daniel Hair formally called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
Motion to accept map submitted by Deb Main by Hair. Second by Turner. Approved 3-0. 
Main presented a map showing where possible CO2 pipelines may run through Woodbury County and information on possible 
risks, safety concerns. 

Approval of Minutes 
The January 9, 2023, minutes were approved. Motion by Thiesen to approve; Second by Turner. Motion passed 3-0. 

Discussion/Information: Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040 Update 
SIMPCO will hold an Open House workshop on April 26, 2023 from 5:00 – 6:30 in the Basement Board of Supervisors 
meeting room to review the plan and receive public comment on future development plans for Woodbury County. 
The public is welcome to attend, input is encouraged. 

Discussion/Information: The New woodburycountyiowa.gov Website 
Priestley overviewed features of the new Woodbury County website.  

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda 
None 

Board Member Comment or Inquiry 
Turner asked for use of abbreviations be limited in reports. 

Staff Update 

Iowa State University Extension and Outreach will provide a Zoning Training session on zoning April 27, 2023, at 
the Hilton Garden Inn on April 27, 2023.  Board of Supervisors, Zoning Commission, and Board of Adjustment 
members are invited to attend. 
Board of Supervisors will address solar regulations for private and commercial land at their April 4th meeting. 

Adjourn    
Motion by Turner to adjourn; second by Thiesen. Motion passed 3-0. Meeting concluded at 7:24 PM.       

3



2

ATTACHMENT – FIGURE 1 

4



WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas St. · Sixth Floor · Sioux City, IA 51101 · Phone: 712.279.6609 · Fax: 712.279.6530 · Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator · dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk · dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

ZONING COMMISSION REPORT – APRIL 26, 2023 
VENDOR ALCOHOL SALES DURING RAGBRAI – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROPOSAL 

APPLICATION DETAILS PROPERTY DETAILS TABLE OF CONTENTS
Owner/Applicant(s): Chad & Tara Schmitt / Backpocket Brewing 
Application Type: Conditional Use Permit – Ragbrai Alcohol Sales 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Total Acres: 3.49 
Current Use: Proposed Use: Residential 
Pre-application Meeting: None 
Application Date: March 3, 2023 
Legal Notice Date: April 15, 2023 
Stakeholders’ (500’) Letter Date: April 14, 2023 
Zoning Commission Review Date: April 24, 2023 
Board of Adjustment Public Hearing Date: May 1, 2023 

Parcel(s): 894407100006 
Township: T89N R44W (Arlington) 
Section: 7 
Quarter: NW ¼  
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Floodplain District: Zone X (Not in Floodplain) 
Address: 2590 110th St., Moville, IA 51039 

□ Summary, Recommendation, Aerial & Proposed Area 
□ Review Criteria 
□ Applicant Comments 
□ Legal Notification 
□ Adjacent Owners’ Notification 
□ Stakeholder Comments 
□ Supporting Documentation 
□ Application 

SUMMARY
Backpocket Brewing (Applicant) and property owners Chad and Tara Schmitt have filed for a Conditional Use Permit application to sell alcohol during 
RAGBGRAI’s visit through Woodbury County on July 23, 2023.  The proposed sales site is on Parcel #894407100006 as referenced above.  The 
parcel is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not located in the floodplain.  The Woodbury County Board of Supervisors 
approved Ordinance #69, effective November 16, 2022, authorizing this request as a conditional use in the AP District.  Based on the information 
received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval.  Staff 
recommends approval.  On Monday, April 24, 2023, the Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval of the conditional 
use permit to allow the sales of alcohol only during the Special Event of RAGBRAI on July 23, 2023 with the condition that the property 
owner/applicant shall obtain all necessary federal, state and local permits including, but not limited to liquor licensing. The permit shall terminate at 
11:59 PM CT on July 23, 2023.

SITE PLAN AERIAL VIEW

ZONING COMMISSION AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION
On Monday, April 24, 2023, the Woodbury County Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval of the conditional use permit 
to allow the sales of alcohol only during the Special Event of RAGBRAI on July 23, 2023 with the condition that the property 
owner/applicant shall obtain all necessary federal, state and local permits including, but not limited to liquor licensing. The permit shall 
terminate at 11:59 PM CT on July 23, 2023.  Staff recommends approval of the conditional use permit to allow the sales of alcohol on 
Parcel #894407100006 only during the Special Event of RAGBRAI on July 23, 2023 with the condition that the property owner/applicant 
shall obtain all necessary federal, state and local permits including, but not limited to liquor licensing.   

Suggested Motion: 
Motion to recommend approval of the conditional use permit to allow the sales of alcohol only during the Special Event of RAGBRAI on 
July 23, 2023 with the condition that the property owner(s)/applicant(s) shall obtain all necessary federal, state and local permits 
including, but not limited to liquor licensing. The permit shall terminate at 11:59 PM CT on July 23, 2023. 

5



ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES – APRIL 24, 2023

6



7



8



LEGAL NOTIFICATION

9



10



11



PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION
The three (3) property owners within 500 FT; and listed within the certified abstractor’s affidavit; were notified 
by an April 14, 2023 letter of the public hearing before the Woodbury County Board of Adjustment on May 1, 
2023

As of the printing of this packet, the Community and Development office has received: 
- 0 Phone Inquiries 
- 0 Written Comments 

The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

Property Owner(s) Mailing Address Comments
Chad L. Schmitt and Tara A. Schmitt 2590 110th St. Moville IA 51039 No comments.
Charles H. Montange 426 NW 162nd St. Seattle  WA 98177 No comments.
Earl E. Maxwell 123 2nd St. S Moville IA 51039 No comments.

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments. 
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments. 
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I believe I’ve commented on all of these.   We shouldn’t have any issues with any of the proposals. – 

Casey Meinen, 4/11/23.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division):  No comments. 
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments. 
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed the location of this temporary alcohol sales during RAGBRAI.  It is not near or adjacent to 

any NIPCO facilities.  NIPCO has no objections to this request. – Jayme Huber, 4/6/23. 
Have reviewed these five zoning requests, NIPCO has no facilities at or adjacent to these locations.  
NIPCO has no issues with these requests. – Jeff Zettel, 4/12/23.

NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments. 
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments. 
WIATEL: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: I have no comments on, or concerns with, this conditional use permit. – Mark Nahra, 4/6/23. 
WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: I see no issues.  Thank you. – Diane Swoboda Peterson, 4/6/23..
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY SHERRIFF: No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT: The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this conditional use permit request. – Neil Stockfleth, 4/5/23.

12



ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment 
(BOA).  The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board. 

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

REQUESTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR THE DAY RAGBRAI PASSES 2590 110TH ST MOVILLE,  IA 51039 
ON SUNDAY, JULY 23RD.  WE PLAN TO SELL ALCOHOL (BEER ONLY,  NO LIQUOR) AS WELL AS FOOD AND NA 
DRINKS.  WE SELECTED THIS LOCATION AS AN OASIS OF SORTS WITH IT BEING HALF WAY BETWEEN LEAVING 
SIOUX CITY AND KINGSLEY THE RIDERS WILL NEED A REST AND THIS YARD WILL PROVIDE IT. 

CRITERIA 1:

The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located and 
that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury 
County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

THE AP ZONING ALLOWS FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR THE SALE OF ALCOHOL ALONG RAGBRAI PER 
THE UPDATED ORDINANCE - Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance Section 2.02-9-C.  WE HAVE SUBMITTED A DETAILED 
DIAGRAM, APPLIED FOR A ALCOHOL LICENSE, AND OBTAINED A CERTIFIED ABSTRACT LISTING OF ALL 
LANDOWNERS WITHIN 500 FEET. 

Staff Analysis:

The Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4) of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance includes the Agricultural 
Preservation (AP) Zoning District as a location authorized for a conditional use pending review by the Zoning Commission 
and approval by the Board of Adjustment.     

CRITERIA 2:

The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the goals, 
objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

THE ORDINANCE ALLOWS FOR THE SALE OF ALCOHOL ALONG THE RAGBRAI  ROUTE ZONED AP. WE HAVE MET 
ALL OF THE REQUIREMENTS AS STATED ABOVE FOR THIS ORDINANCE.  THE ORDINANCE ALLOWS FOR THE 
TEMPORARY SALE OF FOOD AND NON-ALCOHOL BEVERAGES AND ALLOWS THE  OPPORTUNITY TO APPLY FOR 
A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO SELL ALCOHOL.  THIS REQUEST MAY ALSO BE COMPATIBLE WITH THE COUNTY’S 
GENERAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN.  SECTION 6.4 OF THE PARKS & REC POLICY MENTIONS THE DESIRE TO 
"SUPPORT AREA HISTORICAL AND CULTURAL ACTIVITIES". 

Staff Analysis:

The Zoning Ordinance facilitates the opportunity for applications for conditional use permits for the sales of alcohol only during 
the special event of RAGBRAI.  Staff concurs with the applicant’s citation of Park and Recreational Policy 6.4 for the support 
of historical and cultural activities.  RAGBRAI is an event recognized around the world that puts Iowa, and in this case 
Woodbury County, on the map.  The opportunity to provide services including the sales of food and beverages (both non-
alcohol and alcohol) offers the bikers while moving through Woodbury County ,the opportunity to take a break, socialize, and 
to enjoy the beautiful rural landscape.    

CRITERIA 3:

The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the character 
of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and general 
welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

13



RAGBRAI  ON ITS OWN WILL AFFECT THE TRAFFIC PATTERNS FOR THE DAY. VISITORS THAT DO STOP AT OUR 
LOCATION WILL STAY FOR 30-45 MINUTES AND BE ON THEIR WAY.  WE EXPECT TO BE SHUT DOWN BY STATE 
TROOPERS BY 1 PM DUE TO THE EARLY LOCATION ON THE ROUTE. AT THAT POINT WE WILL STOP SERVING 
ALCOHOL AND THE RIDERS WILL BE CLEARED FROM THE YARD (THIS HAPPENS DAILY). THE 3 NEAREST HOUSES 
ARE .28, .35 & .45 MILES AWAY AS THE CROW FLIES.  THEY WILL NOT HEAR OR VISUALLY BE ABLE TO SEE THE 
PROPERTY DUE TO HILLS IN THE AREA.  AS OUR SITE PLAN SHOWS ALL VENDORS ARE AWAY FROM THE RIGHT 
OF WAY.  RIDERS WILL PARK THEIR BIKE IN THE YARD, GRAB SOME FOOD, AND A BEER IF THEY WOULD LIKE TO 
AND SIT IN THE SHADE ALL LOCATED OFF THE RITE OF WAY. WE HAVE STAFF THAT CONSTANTLY MONITORS 
THE CROWD FOR ANY ISSUES THAT MAY ARISE (WE HAVE  NEVER HAD ANY).  WE ARE ALSO REQUIRED TO 
OBTAIN A ALCOHOL LICENSE AND FOLLOW RULES TO OPERATE AS WELL AS A FOOD PERMIT TO ENSURE 
SANITARY SAFETY IS ALSO TAKING PLACE.  WE HAVE BEEN IN OVER 100 YARDS AND OPERATED AT THE IOWA 
STATE FAIR AND OVER 50 OTHER EVENTS.  WE HAVE NEVER HAD AN INCIDENT OF ANY KIND AND EXPECT 
NOTHING DIFFERENT ON THIS LOCATION.  OUR LOCATION WILL BE CONSIDERED A SAFETY REST STOP DUE TO 
THE HILLS AND HEAT.  SO MUCH THAT THE NATIONAL GUARD IS PLANNING TO BE AT OUR LOCATION HANDING 
OUT DRINKING WATER. 

Staff Analysis:

This proposal will have a temporary impact on the neighborhood during the RAGBRAI timeframe.  All activity must be 
conducted on the property and not encroach into the right-of-way.  The applicants must ensure the site is properly cleaned up 
and no debris is found in the right-of-way.  All federal, state, local requirements concerning alcohol sales/licensing and 
expectations must be met.   

CRITERIA 4:

The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be 
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of 
surrounding property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

THIS CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT IS TEMPORARY (LESS THAN 24 HOURS). THE TIMEFRAME FOR THE ACTUAL 
EVENT WILL BE FROM 8AM-1PM ON SUNDAY JULY 23RD.  UPON SHUT DOWN WE WILL REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY 
STRUCTURES FROM THE PROPERTY THAT DAY, WITH THE EXCEPTION OF THE DUMPSTER.  THE DUMPSTER 
WILL BE REMOVED WITHIN THE NEXT 2 DAYS AS THE LOCAL TRASH COMPANY IS ABLE TO GET TO IT WE WALK 
THE ENTIRE YARD AND DITCHES FOR 1/4 MILE PICKING UP ANY TRASH WE FIND, EVEN IF IT IS NOT FROM OUR 
EVENT THE NEIGHBORHOOD AFTER WE LEAVE WILL NOT EVEN BE ABLE TO TELL WE WERE THERE.  THE 6 PORTA 
POTIES AND DUMPSTER WILL ENSURE THERE IS NO TRASH OR WASTE LEFT ON SITE. 

Staff Analysis:

This proposal will have a temporary impact on the neighborhood during the RAGBRAI timeframe.  All activity must be
conducted on the property and not encroach into the right-of-way.  The applicants must ensure the site is properly cleaned up 
and no debris is found in the right-of-way.  All federal, state, local requirements concerning alcohol sales/licensing and 
expectations must be met.   

CRITERIA 5:

Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

THE ROAD WILL BE ESSENTIAL AND PROVIDE A MEANS TO ACCESS THE LOCATION VIA BIKE.  WE ARE NOT A 
LOCATION THAT WILL SEE VEHICLE TRAFFIC (CUSTOMERS).  WE DISCOURAGE IT AND NEVER POST OUR ACTUAL 
ADDRESSES, JUST GENERAL AREAS ON THE ROUTE.  BIKE CUSTOMERS ARE ALL THAT WE HAVE THAT DAY.  WE 
ALSO PROVIDE 6 PORTA POTTIES, DUMPSTER, AND 15 GARBAGE CANS IN THE YARD.  WE HAVE FOUND OVER 
THE YEARS THAT THIS IS AN ADEQUATE NUMBER FOR OUR CROWDS.  ELECTRICITY IS NOT A CONCERN AS WE 
PROVIDE OUR OWN.  THE DUMPSTER IS COLLECTED AFTER THE EVENT AND THE 6 PORTA POTTIES ARE 
REMOVED THAT EVENING. 

Staff Analysis:

The property appears to be suitable for the proposed conditional use.  This proposal will have a temporary impact on the 
neighborhood during the RAGBRAI timeframe.  All activity must be conducted on the property and not encroach into the right-
of-way.  The applicants must ensure the site is properly cleaned up and no debris is found in the right-of-way. All federal, 
state, local requirements concerning alcohol sales/licensing and expectations must be met.   

14



CRITERIA 6:

The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or historic 
features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

NO DAMAGE OR ALTERING OF THE LANDSCAPE WILL TAKE PLACE. THIS IS A 24 HOUR EVENT AND THE PROPERTY 
WILL BE RETURNED TO AS FOUND CONDITION BEFORE WE LEAVE ON THE  EVENING OF SUNDAY, JULY 23RD. 

Staff Analysis:

No major adverse effect upon any significant natural, scenic or historic features of the subject property or adjacent properties 
is expected.  This proposal will have a temporary impact on the neighborhood during the RAGBRAI timeframe.  All activity 
must be conducted on the property and not encroach into the right-of-way.  The applicants must ensure the site is properly 
cleaned up and no debris is found in the right-of-way.  The property and area shall be left in the same condition in which it 
was found.  

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1:

The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service or facility that is in 
the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Staff Analysis:

This temporary event, at the proposed location, offers RAGBRAI participants the opportunity to take a break while on the 
route. 

OTHER CONSIDERATION 2:

All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to minimize any 
adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Staff Analysis:

Temporary event.  No anticipated development.     

SITE PLAN

15



APPLICATION

16



17



18



19



20



ZONING MAP

21



PARCEL REPORT

22



23



ELEVATION MAP

24



WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas St. · Sixth Floor · Sioux City, IA 51101 · Phone: 712.279.6609 · Fax: 712.279.6530 · Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator · dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk · dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

STAFF REPORT – APRIL 26, 2023 
VARIANCE REQUEST

APPLICATION DETAILS PROPERTY DETAILS TABLE OF CONTENTS
Owner/Applicant(s): Jerod & Kayla Eickholt 
Application Type: Variance 
Zoning District: Agricultural Estates (AE) 
Total Acres: 5.83 
Current Use: Bare Parcel     Proposed Use: 40’ 60’ Pole Barn (Shed) 
Pre-application Meeting: None 
Application Date: March 31, 2023 
Legal Notice Date: April 15, 2023 
Stakeholders’ (500’) Letter Date: April 14, 2023 
Board of Adjustment Public Hearing Date: May 1, 2023

Parcel(s): 884724300011 
Township: T88N R47W 
Section: 24 
Quarter: Lot 1 of Davis Estates Subdivision 
Zoning District: Agricultural Estates (AE) 
Floodplain District: Zone X (Not in Floodplain) 

□ Summary, Recommendation, Aerial & Proposed Area 
□ Review Criteria 
□ Applicant Comments 
□ Legal Notification 
□ Adjacent Owners' Notification 
□ Stakeholder Comments 
□ Supporting Documentation 
□ Application 

SUMMARY
Jerod & Kayla Eickholt have filed a variance application with the request to build an approximately 40’ x 60’ accessory pole barn (shed) prior to 
building a principal structure (single-family dwelling).  Section 4.12.2 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance requires that “no accessory building 
shall be constructed upon a lot until the construction of the principal building has commenced…” (p. 45).  The property owners have filed this variance 
to request relief from the requirement that the principal structure (house) must be built before the accessory structure (shed) due to a delay with the 
contractor.  Based on the information provided, the requirement to build the principal structure first is a practical difficulty for the property owners in 
this case-by-case situation.  Therefore, staff recommends approval of the variance with the conditional that the property owner apply for both the 
house and shed building permits at the same time in anticipation of the two building projects. 

PLAN AERIAL VIEW

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Based on the information provided, the requirement to build the principal structure first is a practical difficulty for the property owners in this case-by-
case situation.  Therefore, staff recommends approval of the variance with the condition that the property owner apply for both the house and shed 
building permits at the same time in anticipation of the two building projects.   

Suggested Motion: 
Motion to approve the variance request with the condition that the property owner apply for both the house and shed building permits at the same 
time in anticipation of the two building projects.  

25



APPLICATION

26



27



28



29



30



31



LEGAL NOTIFICATION

32



33



34



PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION
The eight (8) property owners within 500 FT; and listed within the certified 
abstractor’s affidavit; were notified by an April 14, 2023 letter of the public hearing 
before the Woodbury County Board of Adjustment on May 1, 2023. 

As of the printing of this packet, the Community and Development office has 
received: 

- 0 Phone Inquiries 
- 0 Written Comments 

The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be 
provided at the meeting.

Property Owner(s) Mailing Address Comments
Jerod Eickholt and Kayla Eickholt 2724 So. Martha St. Sioux City IA 51106 No comments received. 
Lee H. Brennan, Trustee of Lee H. Brennan 
Trust 

1713 Old Hwy 141, PO 
Box 241 

Sergeant Bluff IA 51054 No comments received. 

Edward J. Beacom and Coleen J. Beacom 
Trustees of the Joint Revocable Living Trust of 
Edward J. Beacom and Coleen J. Beacom

1709 Old Hwy 141 Sergeant Bluff IA 51054-
8055 

No comments received. 

Douglas D. Rush, Dennis M. Rush, and Dale L. 
Rush 

1629 10th St. Onawa IA 51040 No comments received. 

Charles F. Widman and Charlene M. Widman 2360 220th St. Bronson IA 51007 No comments received.
Lieber Properties, LLC 145 S. Shay Road North Sioux 

City
SD 57049-

5041
No comments received. 

Todd Grohs and Katherine Grohs 1661 180th St. Sioux City IA 51106 No comments received.
Francis E. Waddell Trust 4000 South Westport 

Ave. Apt #332
Sioux Falls SD 57106 No comments received. 

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments received. 
FIBERCOMM: No comments received. 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments received.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments received.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments received.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments received.
LONGLINES: No comments received. 
LUMEN: No comments received.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments received.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I believe I’ve commented on all of these.   We shouldn’t have any issues with any of the proposals. – 

Casey Meinen, 4/11/23.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division):  No comments received. 
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments received. 
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments received.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed these five zoning requests, NIPCO has no facilities at or adjacent to these locations.  

NIPCO has no issues with these requests. – Jeff Zettel, 4/12/23.
NUSTAR PIPELINE: This parcel does not impact NuStar’s pipeline. – Dave Leal, 4/6/23.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments received. 
WIATEL: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments received. 
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: Two Messages: I have no objection to the proposal to build the accessory building first.   The structure is 

well off of the road and I see no reason to object.   There is a driveway in place on this lot, preliminary 
grading is done, and I see no reason that construction can’t proceed. I was confused on the driveway 
status.   I was looking at the Choquette property as having a driveway in place.   Eickholt’s have still not 
applied for a driveway permit, although one can be installed anywhere along their property frontage.   I 
have no objection to the proposal to build the barn first, but prior to construction, a driveway needs to be 
permitted along the frontage by my office. – Mark Nahra, 4/6/23. 

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT: The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this variance request. – Neil Stockfleth, 4/6/23.

35



CRITERIA 1: (Section 2.02.8F1[A])

In terms of the variance application process, it is the duty of the Board of Adjustment to determine that the granting of the variance will not be contrary to 
the public interest or the general intent and purpose of this title in it that it:

1. ADVERSELY IMPACTS NEARBY PROPERTIES;

2. SUBSTANTIALLY INCREASES CONGESTION OF PEOPLE, BUILDINGS OR TRAFFIC;

3. ENDANGERS PUBLIC HEALTH OR SAFETY;

4. OVERBURDENS PUBLIC FACILITIES OR SERVICES OR;

5. IMPAIRS THE ENJOYMENT, USE OR VALUE OF NEARBY PROPERTY.

Applicant Response:

1. Explain below why granting the variance will not adversely impact nearby properties: 
- We want to construct a 40' x 60' pole barn (shed) this year before constructing our new home on the parcel about 9 months later. The pole 

barn will be installed by Cleary Corporation of Le Mars, Iowa, a franchisee of a company that installs these type of sheds in a wide region. 
The shed will be used for storage of building materials of the future home along with general personal items. The construction will take 
about 3 weeks. The shed will be located about 400 feet from the highway and about 350 feet from the nearest neighbor. 

2. Explain below why granting the variance will not substantially increase congestion of people, buildings or traffic: 
- Construction of the barn will take approximately 3 weeks. After construction is complete, we will access the barn approximately every other 

weekend. 

3. Explain below why granting the variance will not endanger public health or safety: 
- See above. 

4. Explain below why granting the variance will not overburden public facilities or services: 
- A driveway will be put in along with the County installing a culvert per County regulations. Electricity will be connected to the shed. 

5. Explain below why granting the variance will not impair the enjoyment, use or value of nearby property: 
- As stated previously, the shed will be set back from the highway about 400 feet and will be about 350 feet from the nearest neighbor. The 

shed will be a newly constructed improvement by a reputable contractor. The shed will be dark grey in color and made of steel. 

Staff Analysis:

Based on the information presented in this application including the site plan, it is clear that the applicant’s plans to build a house and shed.  Staff concurs 
with the applicant’s responses.  This proposal does not appear to adversely impact nearby properties, increase significant congestion to the area, endanger 
public health or safety, and overburden public facilities or services.  This issue appears to be a practical difficulty as the regulations in the ordinance 
significantly impact the timeline for the property owners to build their shed and house.  

CRITERIA 2: (Section 2.02.8F1[B])

The ordinance also states that granting the variance is necessary to assure that the owner does not suffer an economic hardship. (Note: increased financial 
return or reduced costs to the applicant are not adequate cause for a finding for a hardship.)  A finding of economic hardship must be based on each of the 
following:

6. THE PROPERTY CANNOT YIELD A REASONABLE RETURN IF USED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THIS TITLE;

7. THE PROPERTY HAS UNIQUE PHYSICAL CONSTRAINTS THAT RESULT IN ITS INABILITY TO BE USED IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE 
REQUIREMENTS OF THIS TITLE; AND

8. THE HARDSHIP IS NOT A RESULT OF ACTIONS BY THE OWNER.

Applicant Response:

6. Explain below why the property cannot yield a reasonable return without the granting of the variance: 
- The requested variance will grant us the opportunity to utilize the property sooner and in a more functional way. 

7. Explain below why the property has unique physical constraints that result in its inability to be used without the granting of the 
variance: 
- The property has no physical constraints. The need to construct the shed before the house is constructed is due primarily to the house 

contractor not being able to start construction until 2024. Our plan is to store building materials for the construction of the home in the shed 
to help deter theft, vandalism and damage from both the general public and mother nature. 

8. Explain below why the property has unique physical constraints that result in its inability to be used without the granting of the 
variance:
- As explained [previously], our house contractor cannot begin construction until 2024. 

Staff Analysis:

As noted in Criteria #1, this situation can be construed as a practical difficulty for the property owners.  It is apparent that the owners have plans to 
construct both a house and a shed.  The ordinance regulations do not coincide well with the planned timeline for both the property owners and contractor.  
This is a case-by-case situation and it is reasonable for the property owners to present this as a practical difficulty as this ordinance requirement makes it 
much more difficult to finalize their plans to prepare their property for residential use in rural Woodbury County.    

36



CRITERIA 3: (Section 2.02.8F2-5)

The ordinance also states that no variance shall be granted:

9. WHICH WOULD PERMIT THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A USE WITHIN A GIVEN DISTRICT WHICH IS PROHIBITED THEREIN;

10. WHICH IS SO COMMONLY RECURRING THAT IT IS A DE FACTO AMENDMENT OF THIS ORDINANCE; AND

11. THAT IS MORE THAN THE MINIMUM RELIEF NEEDED.

12. TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 5.03 RELATIVE TO FLOOD PLAIN MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS UNLESS THE BOARD OF 
ADJUSTMENT CONSIDERS THE FACTORS LISTED IN SUBSECTION 5.03-9.C (4). 

Staff Analysis:

As noted in Criteria #2, this is a case-by-case situation and it is reasonable for the property owners to present this as a practical difficulty as this ordinance 
requirement makes it much more difficult to finalize their plans to prepare their property for residential use in rural Woodbury County.  This request has no 
impact on land use and is acceptable relief from the practical difficulty that has been presented. 

37



SITE PLAN

38



ZONING MAP

39



PARCEL REPORT

40



ELEVATION MAP

41



WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas St. · Sixth Floor · Sioux City, IA 51101 · Phone: 712.279.6609 · Fax: 712.279.6530 · Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator · dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk · dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

ZONING COMMISSION REPORT – APRIL 26, 2023 
LANDSCAPING/NURSERY/ETC. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROPOSAL 

APPLICATION DETAILS PROPERTY DETAILS TABLE OF CONTENTS
Owner/Applicant(s): Marilyn Niemeyer, Trustee; Sid Mosher, 
Mosher Landscaping 
Application Type: Conditional Use Permit 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Total Acres: 4.500 
Current Use: Commercial Trucking Proposed Use: Landscaping /Nursery 
Pre-application Meeting: March 28, 2023
Application Date: March 30, 2023 
Legal Notice Date: April 15, 2023 
Stakeholders’ (500’) Letter Date: April 14, 2023 
Zoning Commission Review Date: April 24, 2023
Board of Adjustment Public Hearing Date: May 1, 2023

Parcel(s): 894607100006
Township/Range: T89N R46W (Concord Township) 
Section: 7 
Quarter: SW ¼ of the NW ¼  
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Floodplain District: Zone X (Not in Floodplain) 
Address: 1130 Barker Avenue, Sioux City, IA 51108

□ Summary, Recommendation, Aerial & Proposed Area 
□ Review Criteria 
□ Applicant Comments 
□ Legal Notification 
□ Adjacent Owners' Notification 
□ Stakeholder Comments 
□ Supporting Documentation 
□ Application 

SUMMARY
Marilyn Niemeyer, as Trustee of the Edwin O. Niemeyer Revocable Trust (Owner) and Sid 
Mosher (Applicant) has filed for a conditional use permit application to use the property for 
landscaping and a nursery on a portion of the property identified as Parcel #894607100006 and 
referenced above.  Although horticultural production (including nurseries & greenhouses) are 
principally allowed uses in the AP Zoning District, a conditional use permit is required for similar 
landscaping uses such as tree services, sand and gravel storage, and feed and seed sales, 
fertilizer storage/distribution/application, and other related uses to a landscaping business.  This 
conditional use permit application is being considered concurrently with a one-lot minor 
subdivision application to establish a 4.5-acre lot.  This proposal has been property noticed in the 
Sioux City Journal Legals Section on April 15, 2023.  The neighbors within 1000 FT have been 
duly notified via a April 14, 2023 letter about the May 1, 2023 Board of Adjustment Public 
Hearing.  Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations 
have been notified and have been requested to comment.  This property is located in the 
Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not located in the Special Flood Hazard Area 
(SFHA).  Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning 
Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval.  Staff recommends approval.  
On April 24, 2023, the Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval of the conditional 
use request to allow for this property to be used as a landscaping and nursery business with 
associated uses including tree services, sand and gravel storage, feed and seed sales, fertilizer 
storage/distribution/application, and other uses related to a landscaping business.

SITE PLAN EXCERPT

ZONING COMMISSION AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION
On April 24, 2023, the Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval of the conditional use request to allow for this property to be used as a 
landscaping and nursery business with associated uses including tree services, sand and gravel storage, feed and seed sales, fertilizer 
storage/distribution/application, and other uses related to a landscaping business.  

Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval.  
Staff recommends approval.   

Suggested Motion: 
Motion to approve the conditional use request to allow for this property to be used as a landscaping and nursery business with associated uses 
including tree services, sand and gravel storage, feed and seed sales, fertilizer storage/distribution/application, and other uses related to a 
landscaping business.

42



ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES – APRIL 24, 2023

43



44



45



APPLICATION

46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment 
(BOA).  The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board. 

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

Mosher Landscaping has provided Siouxland with landscaping services since 1976. We start our work day at 8am most 
weekdays and will occasionally work on Saturday. All work is completed on our client’s property therefore we have no walk-
in traffic. Our crews arrive at 8am and load trucks with whatever materials or equipment is needed to complete their daily 
task’s and leave the shop for the day. There is 1 or 2 office personal (myself or my wife) that may come or go throughout the 
day otherwise things are generally quiet during the day. Once the crew has completed their daily task’s they return to the shop 
and generally just park vehicles for reloading the next morning. There may from time to time be some unloading that takes 
place at days end. We receive truckloads of plants at approximately 1-month intervals throughout the summer and truck loads 
of salt on that same interval throughout the winter. Other materials used on our projects will be picked up directly from 
distributers and delivered to work sites having never seen our property with the exception of any overflow product remaining 
after completion of projects. We will maintain an active nursery on site used for the growth of tree’s, shrubs or plant’s to be 
installed on landscaping projects (not sold at a retail compacity) as defined in section 113 of the zoning ordinance definition 
section. As part of the on-site nursery there will need to be fencing to prohibit damage from wildlife as well as a shade structure 
to protect certain plants from damage due to abundant sunshine. We will have a number of concrete block material bins set 
up (1 covered and the other’s open air) to house dirt, salt, rock, mulch etc... There will be a small area used to house only 
overflow palletized hardscape goods. WE DO NOT STOCK ANY HARDSCAPE GOODS but do hold overflow goods for use 
on future projects. We intend to have a couple of bulk material piles (Dirt or Rock) on site from time to time if such material is
being harvested from a project and there is a future project in need of said materials. We do have a dump site for waste 
materials off site therefore no waste materials will be held onsite that does not fit in our dumpster with weekly removal. There 
is a house with an apartment on site that we intend to have the ability to lease preferable to an employee but that may not 
always be the case so would like to avoid any leasing restrictions. Our office will be maintained inside the large shop and that 
shop will also be used to store and maintain equipment and trucks. The winter months will look considerably different. No full-
time personnel are employed during these months and our team only gathers if a snow event occurs. Our days are spent in 
the shop preparing equipment for upcoming snow events, maintaining equipment, or completing office duties. In the event of 
a snow storm our team meets at the shop usually in the first hour after snow has started gathering and dispatch to the field to 
commence removal of said snow. Throughout the event there will be salt trucks coming and going(3 or 4 times per event) to 
load salt otherwise things remain quiet. We will provide snow removal services to the shared lane on the property. As indicated 
on the drawing there will be a designated snow dumping site on the property unless other accommodations can be made. 

CRITERIA 1:

The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located and 
that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury 
County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

After meticulously looking through the chart of land uses provided by the community and economic development dept. of 
Woodbury County, we see that there is no specified land use for “Landscaping” companies. Landscaping, however, is defined 
in section 79 within the ordinance as follows: 

79. Landscaping. The modification of a site for an aesthetic or functional purpose, including the planting and preservation of 
vegetation and the continued maintenance thereof together with grading and installation of minor structures and 
appurtenances. 

We have however, found several listed land uses that we feel our company will fall under noting that the most closely matching 
is “Horticulture Production/Nursery- Greenhouse” which according to the land use table, is allowed under current zoning district 
rules. We will maintain a working nursery on site for the growth of trees, shrubs and plants to be used in our landscaping 
project’s and not sold in a retail capacity. We are currently, and have been for many years, A licensed Nursery Dealer with 
the Iowa Entomology & Plant Science Bureau (License #1060) However, there are certain aspects of our business that we 
feel don’t exactly fall under that description therefore we are asking for a CUP to operate on this property. There are several 
land uses that are allowable with a CUP in this zoning district that we feel closely describe our business. 

63



First is “Tree Services (including Wood Storage) “. We do offer tree trimming and removal on a small scale as part of our 
service schedule as well as tree/shrub planting. I say “small scale” because we do not own, or intend to own, any arial 
equipment in the future so our service extends to our capabilities without such equipment. In addition, there is currently no
need, within our business, to store wood. 

Second is “Sand & Gravel Storage” also allowable with a CUP. We do intend to store sand and gravel, as well as, rock, mulch, 
soil and salt on the property, therefore, we feel this also is a fit for us but must admit that we feel this aspect would also be in 
accordance with “Horticulture Production/Nursery- Greenhouse” as defined in the zoning ordinance #113. 

113. Nursery (plant). An establishment for the propagation, cultivation and growth of trees, shrubs, and other plants from seed 
or stock to be sold for landscaping. Sales of accessory items needed for nurture of plants or maintenance of landscaping such 
as pesticides, fertilizers, soil conditioners and related tools and equipment are part of the normal operation of a nursery. 
Third is “Fertilizer Storage/Distribution/Application”. Although fertilizer storge is limited to 500lbs. or less at most times and 
distribution is not existent within our business model, Fertilizer application is certainly offered by our company, of course with 
a proper business Pesticide applicator license (#00 07328 00) filed with the IDALS, as well as individual applicator license’s 
for each certified applicator within our staff. 

Fourth is “Feed & Seed Sales”. Although we don’t offer feed sales of any kind, we do offer turf grass/native grass seeding as
part of our normal service line-up so it could be argued that seed sales fits this category as a service but not retail capacity. 

Fifth is “Waste Composting” Although we do have an offsite disposal location for waste materials obtained from landscaping 
projects. We do from time-to-time store materials such as sod removed from properties in compost piles for use in the nursery 
or landscaping projects when nutrient soil is required in the proper nurturing of trees and plants. 

Mosher Landscaping’s Active licenses are as follows: 

Department of Agriculture and Land Stewardship 
Commercial Pesticide License 
#00 0738 000 

Iowa Entomology & Science Bureau 
Nursery Dealer 
#1060 

State of Iowa - Iowa Department of Labor Contractor Registration 
Iowa Contractor License 
#E132415 

Iowa Department of Transportation 
#2889674 
– 
In closing, we feel we meet many, both allowed and allowed with a CUP, land uses authorized within this properties zoning 
district and we meet all standards described within the zoning ordinance. We appreciate your consideration and welcome any 
additional questions that may be directed towards us. 

Staff Analysis:

Staff concurs with the applicant’s assessment of the allowed uses and conditional uses.  As noted, the proposed uses do 
contain elements of the referenced use types.  There is no reference to a landscaping business or use within the Zoning 
Ordinance or in particular, the Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4).  Therefore, staff’s interpretation under Section 
3.03.3 is that the uses the applicant has referenced are comparable and authorized for a conditional use pending review by 
the Zoning Commission and approval by the Board of Adjustment. 

CRITERIA 2:

The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the goals, 
objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

First, I would like to point out that the proposed use of the land in question will not limit or eliminate existing crop land in our 
rural community. As stated in the general plan, Land Use Goal 1.4 we also recognize the Loess Hills as a unique natural 
resource in Woodbury County to be cherished. As seen in our provided property map, we intend to install many trees on-site 
to act as screening from the roadway (Barker Ave,) as well as wind break to improve wind erosion to the hills and farmland 
adjacent to our property, consistent with section 1.6 of the general plan. 

64



1.4 Recognize the Loess Hills from the “front range” to the steeply rolling hills tapering off toward the east as a unique natural 
resource. 

1.6 Establish standards and practices for land development to minimize soil erosion and damaging water runoff, particularly 
in the fragile soils of the Loess Hills area of the county. 

In addition, I would like to point out that current Iowa ordinance specifies that any sub-division of land within 2 miles of Sioux 
City would be subject to annexation by the City of Sioux City. The City of Sioux City has agreed to delay any annexation until 
such time as City water and sewer services are available at the site. This allows us to maintain this plat as a county project 
which is in harmony with the general plan to develop intergovernmental cooperation as indicated in section 1.8 of the general 
plan put forth by Woodbury County. Also, this shows that both the City of Sioux City and the County of Woodbury County 
support existing, growing businesses in Woodbury County. 

Mosher Landscaping often employs young people (sometimes an individual’s first job). And we feel we play an integral role in 
the development of said young people’s work ethic and introduce them to their first real knowledge of how hard work can and 
will pay off for the rest of their lives. We often have previous employee’s reach out to us explaining that their experience with 
us developed them into the person they are today and wanting express gratitude for that experience. We often employ students 
in the summer months while school is in recession and our salary structure of $15.00-$30.00 per hour allows them to 
experience the benefits of a job well done. It was indicated that one of the voice concerns heard at the public meetings held
in March of 2005 indicated that most of the concern related to these trends is for the current and future viability of the economy 
to provide meaningful employment opportunities for the next generation. Concluding that one’s children are likely to leave the 
area to be more financially successful in life. We feel we fill the gap and offer the younger generation a good paying option 
locally. 

It is stated in the general plan under section 2 Economic Development Goal that Woodbury County should support growth 
and stabilization of existing and new, diverse enterprises that effectively leverage public investments to create jobs, payrolls 
and tax base that contribute to a healthy, stable local economy. In fact, section 2.2 displays supporting existing, growing 
businesses in Woodbury County as a Policy. 

In section 9 (Public Safety Goal) it is stated under section 9.2 Public Safety Policies that Woodbury County Clean and regulate 
nuisances and poorly maintained properties. This includes the continued efforts to regulate junk cars, junkyards, and 
dilapidated/deteriorated residences/farmyards across the county. This section particularly stands out to me given the fact that 
our company does this for a living. We spend all of our time day to day designing, installing and maintaining the public 
appearance of our community as well as creating safe passable conditions in the event of a winter weather system. This 
certainly will not stop at our own property, in fact, we feel this particular property has for quite some time been in need of some 
regular maintenance and improvements. As seen in our plat design we propose significant site improvements from a 
landscaping and general appearance perspective. 

Staff Analysis:

Staff concurs with the applicant’s assessment with their citations from the Woodbury County General Development Plan 
(2005) and Zoning Ordinance and finds their plan meets the standard for being in harmony with the general purpose and 
intent of the ordinance and the goals, objectives and standards of the plan.   

CRITERIA 3:

The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the character 
of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and general 
welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Considering the fact that this property has been used as a trucking company (West Transportation and All Area Transit) with 
frequent semi traffic and trailer storage since its construction in 1992, we believe our business will improve effect on adjacent 
property. With the significant landscape/aesthetic improvements planned for the property it will certainly improve the look of 
the neighborhood and surrounding property. We commit to addressing any issue’s brought forth by community members and 
remedy any such concerns as quickly as possible to maintain the upmost community relations. We currently operate in a 
leased shop with several neighbors within our own building and have zero issues maintaining a healthy relationship with said 
neighbors. We, as a company, have much experience working side by side with close neighbors and feel we have an 
impeccable record regarding such. Our operation doesn’t discard any hazardous waste in the atmosphere or soil and is 
committed to maintaining that philosophy indefinitely. Any mixing of pesticide chemicals is done by a certified applicator in a 
manner consistent with IDALS requirements. As explained in our description of conditional use, our traffic requirements are 
limited to morning and evening as our work is completed on client work sites leaving this property generally quiet throughout
the day and overnight. We see no need for road improvements now or in the future. 

65



Staff Analysis:

Based on the information received about this proposal, it appears the proposed use and development will not have a 
substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, 
utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and general welfare.   

CRITERIA 4:

The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be 
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of 
surrounding property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

I would like to point out that the proposed flag shaped plat offers significant setback from Barker Ave. giving us the advantage 
of concealment from the neighborhood. Additionally with the proposed planting of trees as screening around the property we 
feel that will limit any cosmetic concerns regarding surrounding property. As stated previously, traffic, generally speaking, is 
limited to the hours of 8:00am-8:30am and 4:30pm-5:00pm weekdays and given the fact that it may only be 3 or 4 trucks 
moving a day we feel traffic impacts are non-existent. In regard to development and improvement to surrounding property we 
certainly offer no detriment in fact it could be argued the opposite would occur. We are often known to assist with that 
improvement whether it be loaning a skid loader to a neighbor or other equipment we may have available to answering 
horticulture related questions in regard to their property improvements. We are always willing to assist in any way we can. 

Staff Analysis:

Based on the information received about this proposal, it appears the proposed use and development will be located, 
designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not 
interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of surrounding property. 

CRITERIA 5:

Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

There is no need for additional public facilities on this project. This property is self-serving regarding sewer/septic and 
water/well requirements. No road improvements are required to sustain our business. Century link offers adequate high speed 
internet services to satisfy any requirements needed to effectively operate under the described land use outlined in this 
application. As earlier described, the services delivered by Mosher Landscaping will not require public facilities, assets or 
services in addition to those already available on the site. 

Staff Analysis:

Staff concurs with the applicant’s response. 

CRITERIA 6:

The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or historic 
features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

We are committed to maintaining the natural, scenic or historical features of not only the property in question but all of 
Woodbury County. As previously stated in response to criteria 2, we have implemented several control measures in ensure 
these features are left unabated, such as tree planting to control wind erosion, significant landscaping to maintain scenic 
favorability and not impeding on existing farmland. We intend to greatly improve this property for not only our own wellbeing
but that of the neighborhood as well. 

Staff Analysis:

Based on the information received about this proposal, it appears the applicant understands and intends to respect the natural, 
scenic or historical features of the property and neighborhood.    

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1:

The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service or facility that is in 
the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

66



Staff Analysis:

As described herein considerable detail, the proposed use at this particular location can be construed as a service or offering 
to the community.   

OTHER CONSIDERATION 2:

All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to minimize any 
adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Staff Analysis:

Site design, landscaping and screening will minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use 

67



LEGAL NOTIFICATION

68



69



70



PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION – 1000 FEET
The 8 property owners within 1,000 FT; and listed within the 
certified abstractor’s affidavit; were notified by a April 14, 2023
letter of the public hearing before the Woodbury County Board 
of Adjustment on May 1, 2023. 

As of April 19, 2023, the Community and Economic 
Development office has received the following comments.  The 
names of the property owners are listed below. 

When more comments are received after the printing of this 
packet, they will be provided at the meeting. 

Name Address City State Zip COMMENTS: 

Marilyn Niemeyer, Trustee of the Edwin O. 
Niemeyer Revocable Trust

4250 Fremar Dr. Sioux City IA 51104 No comments. 

Justine B. Barkley 1140 Barker Ave. Sioux City IA 51108 See letter below 

Mark W. Zenk 1152 Barker Ave. Sioux City IA 51108 See letter below. 

Hunter A. Rockman 1176 Barker Ave. Sioux City IA 51108 See letter below. 

Derrill J. Townley, Trustee of the Derrill J. 
Townley Revocable Trust

1414 110th St. Sioux City IA 51108 

Edward Townley and Marie Townley 1418 110th St. Sioux City IA 51108 See letter below. 

City of Sioux City 405 6th St. Sioux City IA 51102-
0447

No comments. 

Michael J. Barkley and Mary E. Barkley 5701 41st St. Sioux City IA 51108 

71



LETTERS OF SUPPORT FROM NEIGHBORS

72



73



74



75



76



77



STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments. 
FIBERCOMM: No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments. 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments.
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments. 
LONGLINES: No comments. 
LUMEN: No comments.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments. 
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I believe I’ve commented on all of these. We shouldn’t have any issues with any of the 

proposals. – Casey Meinen, 4/11/23.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division):  No conflicts for MEC Gas. – Tyler Ahlquist, 4/5/23. 
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments.
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed these five zoning requests, NIPCO has no facilities at or adjacent to these 

locations. – Jeff Zettel, 4/12/23.
NUSTAR PIPELINE: No comments. 
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments. 
WIATEL: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No problem here. – Daniel Heissel, 4/4/23. 
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT: The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this proposed conditional use permit. – Neil 

Stockfleth, 4/5/23.

78



SITE PLAN

79



80



81



ZONING MAP

82



PARCEL REPORT

83



84



SOIL REPORT

85



ELEVATION

86



PROPOSED MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAT

87



88



89



WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas St. · Sixth Floor · Sioux City, IA 51101 · Phone: 712.279.6609 · Fax: 712.279.6530 · Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator · dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk · dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

ZONING COMMISSION REPORT – APRIL 26, 2023 
TEMPORARY BORROW PITS – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROPOSAL 

APPLICATION DETAILS PROPERTY DETAILS TABLE OF CONTENTS
BORROW AREA #1 
Owner/Applicant(s): Eric Hennings / JB Holland Construction, Inc. 
Application Type: Conditional Use Permit – Temporary Borrow Site to 
remove earthen materials 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Total Acres: 19.3 
Current Use: Crop Land     Proposed Use: Cropland

BORROW AREA #2 
Owner/Applicant(s): Hennings Joint Trust (Donald Hennings) JB 
Holland Construction, Inc. 
Application Type: Conditional Use Permit – Temporary Borrow Site to 
remove earthen materials 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Total Acres: 35.63 
Current Use: Crop Land     Proposed Use: Cropland

Pre-application Meeting: March 14, 2023 
Application Date: March 29, 2023 
Legal Notice Date April 15, 2023 
Stakeholders’ (500’) Letter Date: April 14, 2023 
Zoning Commission Review Date: April 24, 2023
Board of Adjustment Public Hearing Date: May 1, 2023 

BORROW AREA #1 
Parcel(s): 884704200001 & 884704200003 
Township: T88N R47W 
Section: 4
Quarter: State Government Lot 1 & 5 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Floodplain District: Zone X (Not in SFHA) 

BORROW AREA #2 
Parcel(s): 884702100006 
Township: T88N R47W 
Section: 2
Quarter: Government Lot 2 
Zoning District: Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Floodplain District: Zone A (Portion in SFHA)

□ Summary, Recommendation, Aerial & Proposed Area 
□ Review Criteria 
□ Applicant Comments 
□ Legal Notification 
□ Adjacent Owners' Notification 
□ Stakeholder Comments 
□ Supporting Documentation 
□ Application 

SUMMARY
JB Holland Construction, Inc. (Applicant) and property owners Eric Hennings and Donald Hennings of the Hennings Joint Trust have filed for a Conditional Use Permit 
application to establish temporary borrow sites to remove earthen materials to be used in Phase 1 and 2 of the east bound Highway 20 project (IDOT Project #17-97-
020-010).  The proposed temporary borrow areas are located on Parcel #884704200001, Parcel #884704200003 and Parcel #884702100006 as referenced above.  
Both parcels are located on the south side of Highway 20.  Each parcel is currently used as farm ground.  The proposed cut area on Parcel #884704200001 and Parcel 
#884704200003 is 8-10 acres.  The work area is 10 acres and the total excavation for export is 100,000-150,000 yrds3.  The proposed cut area on Parcel #884702100006 
is 8-10 acres.  The work area is 10 acres, and the total excavation for export is 100,000-150,000 yrds3.  The parcels are located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Zoning District and a portion of Parcel #884702100006 is located in the floodplain.  However, this area will not be a part of the borrow site.  The applicants have provided 
the necessary documentation for storm water management, soil erosion, dust control, haul routes, traffic entrances, hours of operation, and duration of operations.  
Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been notified and have been requested to comment.  Based on the information 
received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance, staff recommends approval of Temporary Borrow Area #2 with the condition that an 
archeological study be completed for the area and approval of Temporary Borrow Area #1 with the condition that an archeological study be completed for the area and 
that approval is contingent on a written agreement between Magellan Midstream Partners L.P. and the property owners and applicants that the active pipeline be 
removed at the location before any borrow activity can proceed.  Without a verified written agreement, it is recommended by staff to deny the application for Temporary 
Borrow Area #1.

BORROW AREA #1 - WEST BORROW AREA BORROW AREA #2 - EAST BORROW AREA

ZONING COMMISSION AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION
On April 24, 2023, the Woodbury County Zoning Commission vote 4-0 to recommend approval of Temporary Borrow Area #2 with the condition that the final 
archaeological study be completed for the area and with the condition that approval is contingent on a written agreement between Magellan Midstream Partners L.P., 
the property owners, and applications that the active pipeline be removed at the location before any borrow activity can proceed.  Without a verified written agreement, 
it is recommended to deny the application for Temporary Borrow Area #1.  Second: Meister.  Motion carried 4-0. 

Staff recommends approval of Borrow Area #2 with the condition that an archeological study be completed for the area.  Staff recommends approval of Borrow Area 
#1 contingent only if Magellan Midstream Partners L.P. has entered into an agreement with the landowners and applicants allowing for the temporary removal of the 
pipe at that location and with the condition that an archeological study be completed for the area 

Suggested Motion 
A motion to recommend approval of Temporary Borrow Area #2 with the condition that an archeological study be completed for the area and approval of Temporary 
Borrow Area #1 with the condition that an archeological study be completed for the area and with the condition that approval is contingent on a written agreement 
between Magellan Midstream Partners L.P. and the property owners and applicants that the active pipeline be removed at the location before any borrow activity can 
proceed.  Without a verified written agreement the project cannot proceed and is denied.

90



ZONING COMMISSION DRAFT MINUTES – APRIL 24, 2023

91



92



93



LEGAL NOTIFICATION

94



95



96



PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION – 500’
The eighteen (18) property owners within 500 FT of both borrow sites; and listed within the certified abstractor’s affidavit; were notified by an April 14, 
2023 letter of the public hearing before the Woodbury County Board of Adjustment on May 1, 2023. 

As of the printing of this packet, the Community and Development office has received: 
- 0 Phone Inquiries 
- 0 Written Comments 

The names of the property owners are listed below.   

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

BORROW SITE #1: PROPERTY OWNERS WITHIN 500 FOOT RADIUS
Property Owner(s) Mailing Address Comments
Hennings Joint Trust 1970 Garner Ave. Moville IA 51039 No comments.
RK Schmitt Properties LLC 2026 Keystone Dr. Omaha NE 68134 No comments. 
Terry V. Swanger Revocable Trust 4274 Delacroix Ct. San Jose CA 95135 No comments.
Susann Magenheimer PO Box 246 Lawton IA 51030 No comments.
Morningside Storage LLC 4109 Gordon Dr. Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 
Gary & Klaren Schoorman 109 Grandy Dr. Sioux City IA 51106 No comments.
Pauline M. Flannery 111 Grandy Dr. Sioux City IA 51106 No comments.
John M. & Lorali Jackson 115 Grandy Dr. Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 
Dennis A. & Julie A. Fischer Trust 112 Grandy Dr. Sioux City IA 51106 No comments.
Jay B. Todd & Stacey M. Todd 114 Grandy Dr. Sioux City IA 51106 No comments.
Georgie A. & John L. Quinlain 116 Grandy Dr. Sioux City IA 51106 No comments. 
Ronald G. & Mary M. Clause 1611 Buchanan Ave. Sioux City IA 51106 No comments.
Madelynne Rene Orr 4 Boxwood Littleton CO 80127 No comments.

Everett A. Hord Jr.
7430 Correctionville 
Rd. Sioux City IA 51106

No comments. 

Flewelling Farms LC
7462 Correctionville 
Rd. Sioux City IA 51106

No comments. 

BORROW SITE #2: PROPERTY OWNERS WITHIN 500 FOOT RADIUS
Property Owner(s) Mailing Address Comments
Clarance M. Uhl & Herthel C. Unl 
Revocable Trust - Eric Hennings

1400 W. 1st St. Sioux City IA 51103 No comments. 

Longlines Ltd. PO Box 1458 North Sioux 
City 

SD 57049 No comments. 

State of Iowa 800 Lincoln Way Ames IA 50010 No comments.

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS
911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER: No comments. 
FIBERCOMM: No comments. 
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR): No comments.
IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT): No comments.
LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY: No comments. 
LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments.
LONGLINES: No comments. 
LUMEN: No comments. 
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: SEE EMAIL BELOW
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division): I believe I’ve commented on all of these.   We shouldn’t have any issues with any of the proposals. – 

Casey Meinen, 4/11/23.
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division): No conflicts for MEC gas. – Casey Meinen, 4/5/23.
NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS): No comments. 
NORTHERN NATURAL GAS: No comments.
NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO): Have reviewed these five zoning requests, NIPCO has no facilities at or adjacent to these locations.  

NIPCO has no issues with these requests. – Jeff Zettel, 4/12/23. 
NUSTAR PIPELINE: This project will not impact NuStar’s pipeline. – Matt McGee, 4/5/23.
SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT: No comments. 
WIATEL: No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: I would endorse this proposed land use.   The borrow is needed for road improvements on Buchanan 

Avenue.  Lowering this hill has the additional benefit of eliminating a snow trap on the county road.    As 
far as this office is concerned, we can’t get this done fast enough. – Mark Nahra, 4/4/23. 

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments. 
WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT: The WCSWCD has no comments regarding the proposed borrow pits. – Neil Stockfleth, 4/5/23.

97



MAGELLAN MIDSTREAM PARTNERS, L.P.

ATTACHMENT: 

98



ZONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment 
(BOA).  The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board. 

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

99



CRITERIA 1:

The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located and 
that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury 
County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Staff Analysis:

The Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4) of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance includes the Agricultural 
Preservation (AP) Zoning District as a location authorized for a conditional use pending review by the Zoning Commission 
and approval by the Board of Adjustment.     

CRITERIA 2:

The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the goals, 
objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Staff Analysis:

The applicants have met or will meet the requirements necessary for the temporary borrow pits including the issuance of a 
NPDES Permit 2 from the Iowa Department of Natural Resources as well as having a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPPP) to control erosion.  It is the expectation of the general plan (Land Use Goal 1.6) as well as county and state policies 
to ensure that “standards and practices for land development to minimize soil erosion and damaging water runoff, particularly 
in the fragile soils of the Loess Hills area of the county.” 

CRITERIA 3:

The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the character 
of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and general 
welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Staff Analysis:

The borrow pit would have a temporary impact on the neighborhood during the extraction and transfer period.  There does 
not appear to be any significant impact to parking, or other factors affecting public health.  However, as noted in Magellan’s 
April 4, 2023 statement above from Bryan Ferguson, an agreement to remove their pipeline has not been ironed out.  Without 
such an agreement currently in place, staff recommends approval of Temporary Borrow Area #1 with the condition that 
approval is contingent on a written agreement between Magellan Midstream Partners L.P. and the property owners and 

100



applicants that the active pipeline be removed at the location before any borrow activity can proceed.  Without a verified written 
agreement, it is recommended by staff to deny the application for Temporary Borrow Area #1. 

CRITERIA 4:

The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be 
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of 
surrounding property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Staff Analysis:

The temporary borrow pits are to be located, designed, and constructed in a manner that will have a minimal impact on the 
area during the time of extraction and transfer.  As long as the location is returned back to farm ground and the SWPPP are
appropriately followed for erosion control, there should be a minimal impact.  It will be imperative for the applicants and 
Magellan to reach an agreement on the pipeline removal.  If an agreement is not achieved, the Temporary Borrow Pit #1 
should not be approved. 

CRITERIA 5:

Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Staff Analysis:

Not applicable to the proposed use. 

CRITERIA 6:

The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or historic 
features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Applicant Response:

Staff Analysis:
101



The applicant must work within the guidelines of the NPDES #2 and Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) to 
prevent any unnecessary adverse effects to the property and return the property to farm ground.   

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1:

The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service or facility that is in 
the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County Zoning 
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Staff Analysis:

This temporary borrow pits are being requested to support the east bound Highway 20 project (IDOT Project #17-97-020-010.  
The borrow extraction from the requested locations can be construed as a service in the public interest to complete 
improvements to local transportation.   

OTHER CONSIDERATION 2:

All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to minimize any 
adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9). 

Staff Analysis:

Steps should be taken to return the property to farm ground.  It will be imperative for the applicants and Magellan to reach an 
agreement on the pipeline removal.  If an agreement is not achieved, the Temporary Borrow Pit #1 should not be approved. 

102



APPLICATION

103



104



105



106



107



GRADING PERMIT APPLICATION(S)

108



109



PARCEL REPORTS

110



111



112



SOIL REPORTS
Borrow Site #1                                                              Borrow Site #2

Borrow Site #1 Summary – Parcel #884704200001 & Parcel #884704200003 

No Summary available for Borrow Site #2 - Parcel #884702100006

113



ELEVATION IMAGERY
Borrow Site #1 

Borrow Site #2 

114



NPDES #2 Permit – Iowa Department of Natural Resources

115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



WOODBURY COUNTY COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
620 Douglas St. · Sixth Floor · Sioux City, IA 51101 · Phone: 712.279.6609 · Fax: 712.279.6530 · Web: woodburycountyiowa.gov

Daniel J. Priestley, MPA – Zoning Coordinator · dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov 
Dawn Norton – Senior Clerk · dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

SOLAR ENERGY REQUIREMENTS IN WOODBURY COUNTY 
On April 4, 2023, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors directed zoning to evaluate solar power in the 
unincorporated areas of the county.   

On April 24, 2023, the Woodbury County Zoning Commission, during an “Information / Discussion” item discussed the 
concepts listed below in this section.  Below is an excerpt from their “draft minutes.” 

DRAFT MINUTES EXCERPT - Information/Discussion:  Woodbury County Solar Energy Requirements Review for Possible Changes to Zoning 
Ordinance 
Priestley informed the Commission that on April 4, 2023, the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors directed zoning to evaluate solar power in the 
unincorporated areas of the county.  Solar energy generation can be classified into two categories including personal or private and utility scale systems.  
The permitting or allowed use of solar panels in Woodbury County is three-fold.  First, utility solar scale systems are only allowed for consideration as a 
conditional use in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District.  They are prohibited in all of the other zoning classifications.  Second, personal or private 
systems are considered in each zoning district via the conditional use permit process.  Lastly, it is possible that the Agricultural Exemption in Iowa Code 
335.2 could be invoked for farms to utilize solar energy as a means of supporting their operation by being primarily adapted agricultural purposes.  As 
noted, the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance prohibits commercial large-scale electrical energy generation (not including wind) in each zoning district 
except for General Industrial (GI).  Within the GI Zoning District, a conditional use permit application is required to be reviewed by the Zoning Commission 
and considered for approval by the Board of Adjustment.  Under this policy, utility scale solar panel systems are prohibited on farmland (and all districts 
except GI) unless a farming operation uses them under the parameters of the agricultural exemption as enumerated in Iowa Code 335.2.  If there is no 
agricultural exemption and the landowner resides on agricultural land, the ordinance prohibits electric energy generation (not including wind).  If a 
landowner desires to use several acres of land in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District, they would first need to achieve a rezone from the AP 
to the GI Zoning District.  However, since spot zoning by convention is not a widely accepted practice, and that much of the future land use map does not 
provide for industrial activities in agricultural areas (see Future Land Use Map below), the chances are minimal for the zoning designation to change in 
order to consider a commercial solar conditional use permit on AP zoned land.  The Commission discussed some potential paths to address solar 
including focusing on amending the private systems to be allowed as an accessory use via building permit.  They also discussed the possibility of making 
the consideration of the conditional use permit an option in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.  Leo Jochum and Doyle Turner offered 
comments about solar including the CSR ratings.  Jochum discussed potential areas in the county that could facilitate solar.  Turner offered concerns 
about the CSR and suggested the siting of solar from a slope standpoint instead.  The Commission discussed having a public hearing next month to 
consider amendments to the zoning ordinance.   

CURRENT ZONING FOR SOLAR 

Solar energy generation can be classified into two categories including personal or private and utility scale systems.  The 
permitting or allowed use of solar panels in Woodbury County is three-fold.  First, utility solar scale systems are only 
allowed for consideration as a conditional use in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District.  They are prohibited in all of the 
other zoning classifications.  Second, personal or private systems are considered in each zoning district via the conditional 
use permit process.  Lastly, it is possible that the Agricultural Exemption in Iowa Code 335.2 could be invoked for farms to 
utilize solar energy as a means of supporting their operation by being primarily adapted agricultural purposes. 

As noted, the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance prohibits commercial large-scale electrical energy generation (not 
including wind) in each zoning district except for General Industrial (GI).  Within the GI Zoning District, a conditional use 
permit application is required to be reviewed by the Zoning Commission and considered for approval by the Board of 
Adjustment.  Under this policy, utility scale solar panel systems are prohibited on farmland (and all districts except GI) 
unless a farming operation uses them under the parameters of the agricultural exemption as enumerated in Iowa Code 
335.2.   

If there is no agricultural exemption and the landowner resides on agricultural land, the ordinance prohibits electric energy 
generation (not including wind).  If a landowner desires to use several acres of land in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) 
Zoning District, they would first need to achieve a rezone from the AP to the GI Zoning District.  However, since spot 
zoning by convention is not a widely accepted practice, and that much of the future land use map does not provide for 
industrial activities in agricultural areas (see Future Land Use Map below), the chances are minimal for the zoning 
designation to change in order to consider a commercial solar conditional use permit on AP zoned land.   

230



231



Residential solar panels are not referenced in the ordinance.  However, it has been an interpretation under Section 3.03 
(see except below) that electric wind generation (private use) is the most comparable use to solar panels for private use.   

1 - Excerpt from Woodbury County’s Zoning Ordinance (p. 39).  
https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/community_economic_development/zoning_ordinance_86604.pdf

Therefore, in order to have residential solar panels as an accessory structure in the unincorporated areas, residents must 
go through the conditional use permit process which would entail review by the Zoning Commission and consideration for 
approval by the Zoning Commission. 

2 - Excerpt from Woodbury County’s Zoning Ordinance (p. 39).  
https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/community_economic_development/zoning_ordinance_86604.pdf

DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND ZONING ORDINANCE
The Woodbury County General Development Plan from 2005 offers goals and policies based the following vision: 

Where, sharing a strong sense of community, good people live freely without fear or want; 
Where all people and businesses prosper, rooted in a diverse agriculturally-based economy;  
Where stewardship of natural resources is a matter of individual and community pride and ownership; 
Where government exists to serve people and to protect the public health, safety and welfare. 

The broad goals derived from this statement include: land use; economic development; agricultural; commercial and 
industrial business; residential; parks and recreation; conservation and environmental; facilities and operations; public safety; 
and transportation.  Thus, each possesses a set of priorities that must be prudently balanced when considering future land 
use measures.   

In terms of land use, the plan calls for growth through stable development.  Land Use Goal 1.1 states “adopt a land use plan 
that designates areas for anticipated future population and business growth needs of the county” (Woodbury County General 
Development Plan, 2005, p. 18).  Land Use Goal 1.2 states “adopt development regulations (i.e. zoning and subdivision 
regulations) that promote efficient, stable land uses with minimum conflicts and provision of public infrastructure” 
(Development, 2005, p. 18).  Thus, the intent for stable development is through the use of zoning districts which designates 
locations as to whether a particular use is acceptable or not.  The Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted in 2008, 
classified electrical energy generation as an industrial use and placed it within the GI Zoning District and omitted its use from 
the other districts.  

Both the development plan and the zoning ordinance offer support for renewable energy access.  In particular, the plan’s 
Economic Development Goal 2.5 is to “fully explore alternative renewable energy sources, particularly wind generation 
facilities both as a contribution to the total energy needs of the county and as a new source of income for property owners” 
(Development, 2005, p. 19).  Section 1.02.2(J) of the zoning ordinance indicates “promoting conservation of energy 
resources and reasonable access to solar energy” (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, p. 1).   

It is apparent that renewable technology has evolved since 2008.  Therefore, it is the intention of this report to evaluate 
whether or not it is necessary to re-examine both residential and commercial use of renewable solar technology.   

232



POSSIBLE OPTIONS
Based on Sioux City and other county’s policies – see next section, there is a clear difference between solar panels to power 
a house, business, or industrial facility as an accessory structure (private) versus a commercial electrical generation 
enterprise (utility scale).  Sioux City’s designation of solar as an on-premises accessory asset is less restrictive than the 
current Woodbury County policy.  However, the task at hand is to evaluate whether the county should reflect Sioux City’s 
policy for accessory solar as well as evaluate whether additional zoning districts could be considered for utility scale solar 
beyond the GI Zoning District.  Based on research of other communities, it appears that the Conditional Use Permit or Special 
Use Permit process is used for Utility Scale Commercial Solar Energy Systems in places such as Clinton, Dubuque, Johnson, 
Louisa, Monona, and Story Counties.  However, the top difference between Woodbury and other jurisdictions is to whether 
utility scale solar should be allowed for consideration in agricultural districts.  In terms of accessory private or personal use 
to power an individual property, solar panels are permitted as accessory structures in places such as Sioux City, Clinton, 
Johnson, Linn, Louisa, Monona, and Polk Counties.   

Accessory Solar (Residential, Commercial, and Industrial) 
- Summary of Options: Establish stand-alone ordinance, amend existing ordinance, or keep the same policy.
- On page 39, add “Social Energy Generation (Private use)” under the “Utilities” category.  Then for each Zoning District category 

including AP, AE, NR, SR, GC, HC, LI, and GI, add the letter “A” to each column as an “Accessory Use.”
o This would enable property owners to add solar panels as accessory structures via the building permit process where 

they must meet the “Zoning District Dimensional Standards.”
o This would also require for each property to already have an existing primary or principal use (e.g. – Single-Family 

Dwelling, Commercial Business, Industrial Facility, etc.).  The solar panels system would be accessory to a primary use.
- Accessory to support a farm – AG Exempt

Commercial Solar 
- Summary of Options: Establish stand-alone ordinance, amend existing ordinance, or keep the same policy.
- Keep the ordinance exactly the same and commercial solar restricted to “General Industrial” areas only.   

o Requires rezone to GI and approval of CUP. 
o Example Projects: MidAmerican Energy (Parcel #874720300006) 

 Zoning Commission Review: September 28, 2020 
 Board of Adjustment Approval: October 5, 2020 

- Amend the ordinance to establish “Conditional Use” permit opportunities for commercial solar systems in additional zoning 
districts such as AP, GC, LI, or other districts. 

- Explore the concept/feasibility of a Planned Development Overlay Zoning District. 

CITY OF SIOUX CITY SOLAR REGULATIONS - EXCERPTS
The City of Sioux City, the largest incorporated community in Woodbury County allows for residential solar panels as 
accessory structures in residential, commercial, and industrial areas.  However, they do not have language for a 
standalone or principal use.  Landowners in dense areas are allowed to install solar arrays as accessory structures as long 
as there is an appropriate principal use.  Below are excerpts/references to residential solar in Sioux City’s code.   

The full Sioux City Code of Ordinances is available at the following link: 
https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/siouxcity-ia/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-4364

TITLE 25 ZONING AND SIGN CODE 
Contents:
CHAPTER 25.03 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
SUBCHAPTER 25.03-B ACCESSORY AND SUPPLEMENTAL STANDARDS 
Sec. 25.03.080 All Uses 
Subsection 25.03.080.4 Solar Arrays 

1. Generally. Solar arrays are allowed as provided in this Item. 
2. Exemption. Solar arrays and energy storage units are exempt from the requirement of obtaining a certificate of occupancy, 

as set out in Subsection 237, Certificate of Occupancy. 
3. Height and Area Exceptions. Solar arrays and their condensers and energy storage units may exceed the height limit and 

encroach into the required yards of the district in which they are located, subject to the standards and limitations set out in 
Section 603, Height and Area Exceptions. 

4. Standards. The following standards apply to all solar arrays: 
a. Roof-Mounts. Solar arrays may be roof-mounted on principal buildings and accessory buildings. 
b. Ground-Mounts. Ground- or structure-mounted (not mounted on buildings) solar arrays shall be set back from 

property lines distances equal to that of detached accessory buildings, subject to the encroachment allowances 
set out in Section 603, Height and Area Exceptions. 

c. Carports a

TITLE 25 ZONING AND SIGN CODE 
Contents:
CHAPTER 25.07 DEFINITIONS 
SUBCHAPTER 25.07-B DEFINITIONS 
S

233



Solar Array (also called "photovoltaic arrays" or "PV arrays") means an array of solar cells that convert energy from sunlight directly to 
electricity. 

TITLE 25 ZONING AND SIGN CODE 
Contents:
CHAPTER 25.07 DEFINITIONS 
SUBCHAPTER 25.07-B DEFINITIONS 
S 
Solar Access Easement means a right expressed as an easement, covenant, condition, or other property interest in any deed or other 
instrument executed by or on behalf of and landowner, which protects the solar access of an actual, proposed, or designated solar energy 
collector at a described location by forbidding or limiting activities or land uses that interfere with access to solar energy. 

TITLE 25 ZONING AND SIGN CODE 
Contents:
CHAPTER 25.03 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
SUBCHAPTER 25.03-A DEVELOPMENT YIELD AND LOT STANDARDS 
Sec. 25.03.050 Height and Area Exceptions 
Subsection 25.03.050.1 Residential Districts 

1. Agriculture (AG), Rural Residential (RR), Suburban Residential (SR), General Residential (GR), Urban Residential 
(UR), Neighborhood Conservation (NC), and residential uses in the Mixed Use (MU) and Suburban Commercial (SC) 
Districts. 

a. Height Exceptions. 
1. Any structure, principal use, or building erected or altered after the effective date of this Code shall 

comply with the height limitations of the district in which it is located, except as specified in this Item. 
However, in no case shall the exceptions listed below exceed the maximum height restrictions of 
the Airport Protection (AP) district, as set out in Subsection 25.02.060.1, Airport Protection (AP) 
Overlay District. 

2. The appurtenances listed below may exceed the prescribed height limit of the district in which they 
are located, provided they are normally required for a use permitted in the district in which they are 
erected or constructed. However, no appurtenance shall appreciably shade a solar array located 
on the same or any adjoining property. 

A. Belfries; 
B. Chimneys; 
C. Condensers; 
D. Cooling towers; 
E. Cupolas, domes, and spires; 
F. Elevator bulkheads; 
G. Flagpoles; 
H. Monuments; 
I. Observation or ornamental towers; 
J. Penthouses for other than living purposes; 
K. Solar arrays, collectors, condensers, and heat storage units, subject to the standards 

set out in Subsection 25.03.080.4, Solar Arrays. 
L. Stacks; and 
M. Standpipes and other necessary mechanical appurtenances and their protective 

housing. 
b. Lot Area Exceptions. See Subsection 25.06.120.7, Nonconforming Lots. 
c. Yards. Any building, structure, or principal use erected, altered, or established shall comply with 

the yard requirements of the district in which it is located, as set out in Subsection 25.03.020.3, Development 
Standards (for Established Neighborhoods) or Subsection 25.03.030.1, Development Standards (for New 
Neighborhoods), except as specified in this Item. 

1. The required yards for any building, structure, or use shall be contained on the same lot and in the 
same district as the building, structure, or use for which it is required. 

2. All required yards shall be open from the ground to the sky, except as specified in this Item. 
d. Yard Encroachments. 

1. Eaves and cornices may extend no more than two feet into a required yard, except that eaves may 
encroach up to three feet into a required yard when such yard is 10 feet or more in width or depth. 
In the case of lot line homes, eaves and cornices shall either extend into a required yard or an 
access easement on the adjoining lot. 

2. Chimneys, when not more than four feet wide, may extend one foot into any required interior side 
yard or street side yard. Such chimneys may extend two feet into any yard when such yard is 10 
feet or more in width or depth. Chimneys of more than four feet in width must conform to the yard 
requirements. 

3. Open, uncovered porches or terraces. 
A. Porches and terraces that are no higher than the floor level of the first floor 

above grade on the side of the building to which they are attached, and in no event 
higher than 30 inches above grade of the lot on the side of the building where such 
porch or terrace is located, may extend: 

I. Three feet into any required side yard, provided it is not closer than three 
feet to a side lot line; 

234



II. Ten feet into any required front yard, provided it is not closer than eight 
feet to the front property line; or 

III. Within no less than five feet of the rear lot line. 
B. No railing or other barrier that is higher than 42 inches shall be placed around a porch 

or terrace and no solid wall or barrier which blocks light or air shall be within five feet 
of any property line, except as otherwise provided in this Item. 

C. All porches and terraces shall be subject to street corner visibility requirements, as set 
out in Subsection 25.04.110.8, Sight Distance Requirements (Reserved), or as 
otherwise required by the City. 

4. Air-conditioning condensers may extend four feet into a required yard, provided the condenser is 
no more than three feet in height and 30 cubic feet in bulk. 

5. Solar energy collectors and heat storage units of up to 200 square feet of collector surface area 
may extend two feet into any required yard of 10 feet or more. A solar energy collector and heat 
storage unit of any size needed to supply the building to which it is appurtenant may be treated as 
an accessory use, subject to the provisions of Subchapter 25.03-B, Accessory and Supplemental 
Standards, and established according to the provisions set out in Section 25.02.280, Permitted 
Accessory Uses, Buildings, and Structures. 

e. Fences and Hedges. 
1. Except in districts allowing the construction of buildings to the property line, there shall be provided 

an unobstructed view within the sight distance triangle, or as otherwise required by the City, within 
which there shall be no sight-obscuring or partly obscuring wall, fence, sign, or foliage that is more 
than 24 inches above curb grade or, in the case of trees, foliage that is lower than 10 feet above 
curb grade. 

2. On portions of a lot not within the sight distance triangle, the height of fences of any length, and 
foliage continuous for five feet or more, shall be limited to 48 inches on any street right-of-way and 
ahead of the front building line. On all other portions of lot lines, fences, hedges, and continuous 
foliage barriers may not exceed the standards set out in Subsection 25.03.090.3 Fences and Walls. 
However, a non-opaque fence may be placed around the grounds of a public or private school that 
may be up to 96 inches in height. 

3. Fences and hedges erected within the building envelope may conform with the building height limits 
for the district in which it is located, subject to all applicable building codes, as amended from time 
to time. 

f. Exception. The Board of Adjustment may approve, or may direct as a condition for granting an appeal, that 
fences or hedges of a height in excess of those established in this Item be placed as buffering between uses, 
provided that no such approval shall have the effect of reducing sight visibility. 

g. Platted Building and Setback Lines. If a recorded subdivision plat imposes a building or setback line for a lot 
which is greater than the minimum yards required in this Code, then, notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Code, the minimum yards shall be the greater of those shown on the subdivision plat or those set out in 
Subsection 25.03.020.3, Development Standards (for Established Neighborhoods) or 
Subsection 25.03.030.1, Development Standards (for New Neighborhoods). 

h. Minor Modifications. The yard, space, and bulk regulations specified in this Code may include consideration of 
minor modifications that may be authorized by the Administrator, or a designee, as set out in 
Subsection 25.06.150.2, Repairs and Modifications. 

i. Average Front Setbacks. Front setbacks may be reduced to the average front setback along the same side of 
the same street segment in the same district, provided that: 

1. The lot proposed for development is not counted in the calculation; and 
2. If the lot takes vehicular access from the front, the driveway must be at least: 

A. 25 feet long, measured from the property line at the street right-of-way to a building 
wall or garage door; and 

B. The width of the garage door(s) are not more than 18 feet or less than nine feet in 
width. (See Figure 25.03.050.1, Front Setback Averaging) 

(Ord. 2016-0177; 2015-0433; 2015-0215) 
Effective on: 6/13/2015

Source: https://online.encodeplus.com/regs/siouxcity-ia/doc-viewer.aspx#secid-4364 

235



CLINTON COUNTY IOWA SOLAR REGULATIONS

236



Source: https://www.clintoncounty-ia.gov/files/county_ordinances/chapter0_zoning_ordinance.pdf 

JOHNSON COUNTY IOWA SOLAR REGULATIONS - EXCERPTS

Source:https://www.johnsoncountyiowa.gov/sites/default/files/2020-08/Johnson%20County%20UDO%20%282020%20ed%29-%20adopted%2012.19.19.pdf 

237



LINN COUNTY IOWA SOLAR CHECKLIST

Source: https://www.linncountyiowa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/5963/Solar-Permitting-Checklist-PDF 

LOUISA COUNTY IOWA SOLAR PROPOSAL

238



239



Source: https://louisacountyia.gov/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/Proposed-Division-115_SolarEnergySystems_v2.pdf 

240



POLK COUNTY IOWA SOLAR REGULATIONS - EXCERPT

Source: https://www.polkcountyiowa.gov/media/1nwmgsyj/zoning-ordinance-updated-2-1-2019-rev-5-06-19.pdf

MONONA COUNTY IOWA SOLAR REGULATIONS

Source: https://mononacounty.iowa.gov/Zoning/AmendedMCChapter100.pdf 

241



ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PORTIONS OF WOODBURY COUNTY ORDINANCE #56: AN 
AMENDMENT TO MODIFY SECTION 6.1.A: WIND TURBINES SET BACK REQUIREMENTS 
TO INCREASE CERTAIN SETBACK REQUIREMENTS IN THE ORDINANCE REGULATING 
COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS IN UNINCORPORATED 
WOODBURY COUNTY. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE BELOW AMENDMENTS BE MADE: 

AMENDMENT #1: 

On page 10, Section 6.1.A, to repeal and replace the Wind Turbine Set Back Requirement for 
the City Limits Protected Area from 600 feet to 2 miles. 

AMENDMENT #2: 

On page 10, Section 6.1.A, to repeal and replace the Wind Turbine Set Back Requirement for 
the Public Conservation Protected Area from 600 feet or 110% of total height (whichever is 
greater) to 2,640 feet or 4.5x tower height (whichever is greater). 

Adopted this ____ day of ______, 2023

______________________________ 
Matthew Ung, Chairman 

______________________________ 
Jeremy Taylor, Vice Chairman 

______________________________ 
Daniel Bittinger II 

______________________________ 
Mark Nelson 

______________________________ 
Keith Radig 

Adoption Timeline 
___________________: Public Hearing and 1st Reading 
___________________: Public Hearing and 2nd Reading 
___________________: Public Hearing and 3rd Reading 
___________________: Adopted 
___________________: Published/Effective Date 

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Patrick Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 

242



FEMA Initiates 90-Day Appeal of the Revised Flood Insurance Rate Map and 
Flood Insurance Study for Woodbury County and Incorporated Areas 
 
SIOUX CITY - The Woodbury County Flood Insurance Rate Map update is nearing completion. 
The new maps will provide Woodbury County with more accurate flood risk information that 
can help local officials and residents make informed decisions about reducing flood risks and 
purchasing flood insurance. 
 
The mapping project is part of a nationwide effort led by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) to increase local knowledge of flood risks and support actions to address and 
reduce those risks. 
 
Before new flood insurance rate maps become effective, there is a 90-day Appeal Period during 
which local governments, county residents, and business owners can provide additional 
technical or scientific data for consideration before the maps are final. This appeal period 
begins April 26, 2023 and ends July 24, 2023.  
 
FEMA has published a notice of the proposed flood hazard determinations in the Federal 
Register and they will publish notification concerning the appeal process in the Sioux City 
Journal on or about April 19, 2023 and April 26, 2023. FEMA will also publish a separate notice 
of the flood hazard determinations on the “Flood Hazard Determinations on the Web” portion 
of the FEMA Website: https://www.floodmaps.fema.gov/fhm/BFE_Status/bfe_main.asp.   
 
Woodbury County officials encourage residents and business owners to review the proposed 
flood insurance rate maps to learn about local flood risks, potential future flood insurance 
requirements, and any concerns or questions about the information provided. 
 
If you have questions regarding the proposed flood hazard determinations, revised FIRM 
panels, or revised FIS report for your community, please call the FEMA Mapping and Insurance 
eXchange (FMIX), toll-free, at: 1-877-336-2627, or email the FMIX staff at: FEMA-
FMIX@fema.dhs.gov.  
 
If you have technical and scientific information, such as detailed hydraulic or hydrologic data, 
you may be able to appeal the flood risk information on the preliminary flood map during the 
90-day Appeal Period. For further details on this process, visit: www.fema.gov, or contact: 
Bryan D. Murdie, Risk Analysis Branch Chief, FEMA Region 7, (202) 257-7627, or email: 
Bryan.Murdie@fema.dhs.gov.  
 

### 
 

243

https://www.floodmaps.fema.gov/fhm/BFE_Status/bfe_main.asp
mailto:FEMA-FMIX@fema.dhs.gov
mailto:FEMA-FMIX@fema.dhs.gov
http://www.fema.gov/
mailto:Bryan.Murdie@fema.dhs.gov

	1) BA Agenda 5-1-23
	2) BA Minutes 04-03-2023
	3) Backpocket_Brewing_CUP_Report
	4) Eickholt_Variance_Report
	5) Mosher-Niemeyer-CUP_Report
	6) JB_Holland_CUP_884704200001_884702100006_Borrow_Pit_JB_Holland
	7) Solar_Report
	8) Ordinance_Wind_Setbacks_Amendments
	9) FEMA Initiates 90



